
 

 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in Regular Meeting on Monday, 
October 7, 2019 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Riddick, Sexton and Walker were present.  Also present were 
County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance 
Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Sexton gave the invocation; 
Commissioner Walker led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Proclamation  National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
d) Resolution:  Retirement Receptions 
e) Resolution Appointing Review Officer 
f) Southern Albemarle Association Delegates 
 
 
Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None.  

 
AQUA PRESENTATION:  Mr. Ruffin Poole, Business Development Director of 

AQUA spoke to the Board. He met Chair Johnson at the NCACC Conference in Guilford 
County in August. 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked AQUA why they don’t serve eastern North Carolina and 
why do they only go as far as Northampton County.   Mr. Poole said that systems they acquired 
are in suburbs.  Commissioner Phelps asked if AQUA wants to come this far.  Mr. Poole said 
yes.  Commissioner Phelps asked would AQUA be running our system or assisting us with it.  
Mr. Poole said he would like to discuss both options. 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked what AQUA would do for the County.  Mr. Poole said 

AQUA could come in and evaluate the County’s system.  They would need financial information 
and see the system itself, then they can provide a formal proposal based on their evaluation and 



 

what improvements are needed and set priorities based on capital needs and then engage in a 
community discussion regarding fair market value. There is a public process for an RFP.  Mr. 
Poole said it is up to the Board to decide if the County would want to go this route.  AQUA 
would pay the County for its system and then work with the County to improve it and keep it 
going.  

 
Commissioner Sexton said would it just be for Washington County.  Mr. Poole said yes, 

since the County doesn’t control the towns (Plymouth, Roper & Creswell) water systems.  
Commissioner Sexton asked about the rate structure.  Mr. Poole said it based on customer 
network.  

 
Chair Johnson said it’s her 3rd time hearing Mr. Poole and wanted the Board to hear him 

also to see what the County’s options are. 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked Mr. Poole how AQUA would handle the County’s aging 
infrastructure.  Mr. Poole said he would use an existing Capital Improvement Plan from the 
County if possible. 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked Mr. Potter if Rivers & Associates is working on a Capital 

Improvement Plan.  Mr. Potter said Rivers & Associates Capital Improvement Plan is more for 
the Pea Ridge area. 

 
Mr. Poole said he could utilize an existing study that Mr. Potter said existed which was 

done by The Wooten Company many years ago. 
 

Chair Johnson thanked Mr. Poole for coming and for his presentation. 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked the Board when they would have more meetings to discuss 
this. Chair Johnson said her thoughts were for the Board to go over the presentation given 
tonight and be ready to discuss it at the November 4 Board of Commissioners meeting.  

 
Chair Johnson also asked Mr. Poole to speak about how this affects current employees.  

Mr. Poole said as long as current employees pass a qualification test, they plan to hire all existing 
employees. Mr. Poole says AQUA needs them for making the transition. Mr. Poole said he is 
available if the Board has any questions in the future please feel free to contact him. 

 
UPDATE ON TIDELAND EMC:  Mr. Paul Spruill, President of Tideland EMS spoke to 

the Board.  Chair Johnson asked him to give the Board an update on Broadband. 
 
 



 

            

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
  
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 
Commissioner Phelps asked why there isn’t someone on Tideland’s Board of Directors 

from Washington County.  Mr. Spruill said there is someone who lives a couple of miles from 
Acre Station, and he covers Washington County.   Mr. Spruill said that no one from Washington 
County has put in to be a member.  A resident can file a petition with the Board by getting 50 
signatures. (There are no term limits at the present time.)  

 



 

Tri-County is now RiverStreet Networks.  They have an Eastern loop and a Western loop 
of fiber optics.  These are the folks who really are in charge of getting broadband.  RiverStreet 
uses fixed base wireless. 

 
Chair Johnson said for the County to move forward we should talk to Mr. Greg Coltrain 

of RiverStreet. Mr. Spruill said he could arrange that.  Commissioner Phelps would like for Mr. 
Coltrain to attend the Board’s  November meeting.  

 
Chair Johnson thanked Mr. Spruill for attending the Commissioner’s meeting and 

showing them some possibilities. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE:   Mr. Potter spoke to the Board giving them the 

highlights of the first Strategic Plan meeting. 
 



 

 



 



 

 



 

 
 



 



 

 
 
Mr. Potter said that if the Board wants to change the mission statement, now is the time 

to do so.  
 



 

Mr. Potter stated that 3 members wanted to focus on tourism and Commissioner Walker 
and Riddick wanted to make sure to include more components.  Mr. Potter said the 3 member 
group was tasked with making a list of the current tourism assets.  Commissioner Phelps asked 
what the goal is after the 10/15 meeting.  Mr. Potter said the goal would be to have an agreed 
upon mission statement and to see if the information from Ms. Sanders is ok with the rest of the 
committee and have info for a larger strategic plan. 

 
Commissioner Walker said he suggested an education component and feels that someone 

should be on the committee from the school system.  Chair Johnson said the committee could 
add members as needed. 

 
Commissioner Walker said he thought the first meeting went very well.   
 
GRANICUS BOARDS & COMMITTEES SOFTWARE UPDATE:  Ms. Bennett told the 

Board that the contract with Granicus for the Boards & Committees software was signed the 
middle of August.  Ms. Angie Adams and Ms. Bennett just had their first teleconference with 
Granicus on Tuesday, September 24.  Ms. Adams is now entering the data in an Excel 
spreadsheet Granicus sent after the teleconference on Tuesday. The deadline to send the data to 
Granicus is October 11.  Their staff will go over it and import it to their system and Ms. Adams 
and Ms. Bennett will have another teleconference on October 21.  Ms. Adams and Ms. Bennett 
are working with Granicus’s tech person and a trainer.  They have “homework”….online training 
sessions that they have to complete on their own.  The real data and website will be available for 
Ms. Adams and Ms. Bennett to train on, on November 18 and 19.  Ms. Bennett’s plan is to go 
live the day of the Board’s meeting on December 2 and to give a demonstration during that 
meeting. 

 
HOMETOWN STRONG:   Mr. Curtis Potter spoke to the Board.  Mr. Potter referenced 

the information below. 
 
 



 

 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
Mr. Potter said the Hometown Strong team from the Governor’s Office plan to be here on 

October 28 at 10:30 am, but that has not been confirmed yet.  
 

 APPROVAL OF USING CURRENT COUNTY ID CARDS FOR VOTING 
PURPOSES:  Mr. Potter brought this to the Board for discussion.  He does not recommend using 
the County’s photo ID as an ID card for voting because all staff does not have them and the 
County needs to be consistent.  Ms. Bell has a way to make an ID for anyone coming in to vote. 
 



 

  



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked why all employees don’t have ID badges.  Mr. Potter said 

cost plays a part of it.  Ms. Keyes said she purchased some of the supplies to make ID badges 
with grant money. Mr. Potter said it’s not required for all staff to have one.  Mr. Potter said he 
could contact employees to see if they want an ID badge and have them see Ms. Keyes to have 
one made. 



 

Commissioner Riddick said when someone does their paperwork for being hired they 
should have to get an ID.  

 
Mr. Potter said he will do what the Board wants.   
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to change the policy so that when employees 

are hired they get an ID badge.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Sexton made a made a motion to follow staff recommendation to not 

let employees use their county ID for voting.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Discussion 
ensued.  Commissioner Phelps said he opposes this since other counties do allow it.  Chair 
Johnson said the process is difficult.  Mr. Potter said he did confer with Ms. Bell on this and she 
did not recommend it.  Chair Johnson suggested they have Ms. Bell come to the next meeting to 
talk to the Board.   Mr. Potter said there is a deadline to be met before the Board can meet again.   

Chair Johnson called for the vote: 4 ayes (Commissioners Johnson, Riddick, Sexton 
and Walker) and 1 nay (Commissioner Phelps). Motion passed. 
 

RECOVERY COURT COORDINATOR AGREEMENT:  Mr. Potter spoke to the Board. 
Please see the following information below. 
 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve all of the documents above and 
authorize the County Manager and Finance Officer to execute the same on behalf of the 
County and deliver them as needed to help create the new Drug Recovery Court 



 

Coordinator position for the 2nd Judicial District as described.  Commissioner Sexton  
seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 

ORDINANCE TO REGULATE COUNTY PARKS AND FACILITIES RULES:  Mr. 
Potter spoke to the Board regarding the Ordinance below. 

 



 

 



 

  



 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve An Ordinance of Washington 

County to Regulate Recreation Parks & Facilities.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mr. Potter commended Ms. Rouse on her work on this Ordinance. 



 

¼ CENT SALES TAX REFERENDUM:  Mr. Potter spoke to the Board. Please see the 
information below. 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 



 

Mr. Potter said the current estimate of revenue to be gained is about $380,000 if the 
County implements this ¼ cent sales tax referendum.  Even though the County can’t earmark the 
funds received for a particular purpose, the County can note that it would like to use the revenue 
for propping up the hospital if needed and the hospital pension plan. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to bring a resolution back to the Board for 

moving ahead with the ¼ cent Sales Tax Referendum.  Discussion ensued about how to 
market it better.  Commissioner Walker seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
APPROVAL OF APPLICATION FOR PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OR EXCLUSION FROM 

NORTHEAST REGIONAL SCHOOL OF BIOTECHNOLOGY AND AGRISCIENCE (NERSBA):  Ms. 
Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator spoke to the Board. 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve NERSBA’s Property Tax 

Exemption or Exclusion request.   Commissioner Riddick seconded.  Chair Johnson 



 

recognized Hal Davis, Supt. of NERSBA.  Mr. Davis thanked the Commissioners for their 
support of NERSBA.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

“CAUGHT YOU CARING”:  Commissioner Riddick spoke to the Board. 
She said she feels that the County should implement a program do something for the community 
if you catch them doing something “caring”. Commissioner Riddick said recognition will be a 
certificate and noted on our Facebook page. 
 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to implement a “Caught You Caring” 
program.  Commissioner Phelps asked who would be implementing this program.  
Commissioner Riddick stated that she would be working with Ms. Bennett on this. 
Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT, BUDGET AMENDMENTS/TRANSFERS:   Ms. 
Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget amendments and her report that was in the 
Commissioners’ package.  

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 



 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the abovementioned Budget 
Amendments and Transfers as presented.  Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Chair Johnson 
asked Mr. Potter about the lottery fund being used to fund the BCCC WCC HVAC system.  Mr. 
Potter said he hasn’t had chance to check into this. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIRMAN, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ATTORNEY, 
CLERK OR FINANCE OFFICER: 
 

Chair Johnson distributed a Census flyer she created for Washington County. She asked the 
Board to look over it and let her know if there are any changes that need to be made. 
 

Commissioner Riddick said she had an opportunity to be on an advisory board at ECU and feels 
by her being on it, it would be beneficial to the County. 
 

Mr. Potter noted a few items: 
Some department heads are starting a 30 day trial of software for managing projects.  Mr. Potter 

will bring it to the Board to show them how it works. 
 

He will be bringing a policy to the Board regarding surplus parcels that the County owns. 
Commissioner Phelps asked if something is on GovDeals can a Commissioners’ family member bid on 
it.  Mr. Potter said he thinks a family member could.  Mr. Potter wants to maximize the revenues the 
County could receive.  
 

He met with the WCS Supt. and their Finance Officer. WCS has been moved off the list of low 
performing schools. A press release will be forthcoming.  Because the state budget has not been passed, 
the school systems cash flow is very tight. The County could help WCS by giving them a higher 
allocation rather than the 1/12 we give them each month…..but not any more than County budgeted for 
as a whole. 
 

He will be attending a meeting in Tyrrell County on Thursday with Ms. Keyes regarding the 
public assistance application process.  He will share what he learns from that meeting. 
 

He discussed with the EMS Director purchasing a 2018 discounted ambulance and intends to 
move forward with purchasing it.  It was in the budget.  The consensus of the Board was to move 
forward. 
 

Mr. Potter said Commissioner Phelps mentioned to him that the County needs to have a working 
group on the PARTF grant and suggested that the Parks and Recreation Committee work on this. 
Commissioner Phelps said the County needs to apply for this grant.  They give the recipients three years 
to match the funds.  Washington County could rebuild the gym and refurbish the parks.  Commissioner 
Phelps said Commissioner Riddick is in charge of the Recreation Committee.  Commissioner Riddick 
said she is waiting on Mr. Potter. Commissioner Riddick said she would like to see the laws changed 
regarding the matching funds.  Commissioner Riddick asked why one side of the Washington County 
gym is painted blue and the other side not painted.  Mr. Potter said he found out that funds ran out to 
continue the painting. Commissioner Riddick said the community needs to participate more.  Mr. Potter 
said he will pull the info from the last Parks and Recreation meeting and pull Ms. Rouse in to assist. 
 



 

Mr. Potter gave a short update on our surplus ambulances.  Ms. O’Neal went out to the Landfill 
to look at the 6 ambulances put there since they are out of commission.  Mr. Potter will be bringing back 
additional information to the Board. 
 

Mr. Potter said that repairs are needed to the Dream Care Provider building. Mr. Boone has 
crews ready to replace the carpet and back door.  Mr. Potter said the County has burned through a fair 
amount of the Facilities budget because we have had a lot of repairs that had to be made. 
 

Commissioner Riddick made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) § 143.318.11(a)(6) personnel.  Commissioner 
Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
At 9:45 PM, back in Open Session with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 

Riddick made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Walker seconded, motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

      Tracey A. Johnson    Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
          Chair                  Clerk to the Board    
 
 
 


